E-ISSN: XXXX-XXXX; DOI: 10.36962/ECS

VOLUME 01, ISSUE 01, 2021

ECONOMICS

MULTIDISCIPLINARY JOURNAL REFEREED SCIENTIFIC JOURNAL

SCIENCE, PRACTICE, EXPERIENCE



E-ISSN: XXXX-XXXX; DOI: 10.36962/ECS

VOLUME 01, ISSUE 01, 2021

ECONOMICS

MULTIDISCIPLINARY JOURNAL REFEREED SCIENTIFIC JOURNAL

SCIENCE, PRACTICE, EXPERIENCE

TALLINN 2021



Editors-in-chief: Revaz Shengelia. Technical and reviewer team manager: Natia Shengelia.

©Publisher: LLC Journal Economics (Georgia, Tbilisi). I/C: 209479027 Director: Revaz Shengelia.
Registered address: 0160, Tbilisi, Georgia, 5. Kazbegi ave.
Actual Adress: 0171, Tbilisi, Georgia. 63, Merab Kostava street.
©Editorial office: 0171, Tbilisi, Georgia. 63, Merab Kostava street.
©Typography: 0171, Tbilisi, Georgia. 63, Merab Kostava street.
Telephones +995 599 56 90 78; +995 599 23 60 17
Website: https://economics.bpengi.com/
Email: economica_1918@yahoo.com, natiashengelia@oxfordbrookes.net

©Publisher: NGO International Center for Research, Education & Training. R/C 80550594 MTÜ Rahvusvaheline Teadus-, Haridus- ja Koolituskeskus.
Management Board Member: Seyfulla Isayev.
©Editorial office: Narva mnt 5, 10117 Tallinn, Estonia.
©Typography: NGO International Center for Research, Education & Training.
Registered address: Narva mnt 5, 10117 Tallinn, Estonia.
Telephones: +994 552 417 012; +994 518 648 894;
E-mail: sc.mediagroup2017@gmail.com
Website:

©MTÜ ICRET, LLC Journal Economics. All rights reserved. Reproduction, store in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form, electronic of any publishing of the journal permitted only with the agreement of the publishers. The journal is published and is shared in soft copy only. Publishing the journal in hard copy is prohibited. The editorial board does not bear any responsibility for the contents of advertisements and papers. The editorial board's views can differ from the author's opinion. The journal published and issued by The Southen Caucasus Media Group.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Zurab Nasaria
Main Tendencies and Challenges of Project Management In local Self-
Governments04
Vera Dzvelaia, Revaz Shengelia
Creativity – The Basic Way For Overcoming The Economic Crisis Caused
By the Covid-19 Pandemic07
Georgi Berikashvili
Transformation of Modern Society09
Marina Bagaturia
Anti-inflationary Policies and Permanent Fluctuations During the
Pandemic 11
Revaz Shengelia, Jujuna Tsiklauri-Shengelia, Megi Ananidze, Natia Shengelia
Extended Reproduction of Scientific-technical Knowledge as a Major Source
of Wealth Growth12
Gocha Abutidze
BANK TRANSFORMATION PROCESS IN AN UNSTABLE GLOBAL
ENVIRONMENT14
Nino Kavtaradze
CURRENCY SYSTEM AND CURRENCY TRADING OF GEORGIA 16
Zhuzhuna Tsiklauri-Shengelia, Natia Shengelia, Revaz Shengelia
Some Practical Financial Reporting (IFRS) Assessment Aspects of The Covid-
19 Impact on Business17
Lela Meskhishvili
DEPRESSED REGIONS OF GEORGIA HAVE GOOD OPPORTUNITIES
FOR INCLUSIVE DEVELOPMENT THROUGH TOURISM 19
Valerian Chedia
Post-Pandemic Perspectives of the Global Civil Aviation
Irakli Kintsurashvili, Shura Ukleba
Tourism Development Perspectives and Challenges in Georgia in the
conditions of the Pandemic (Covid-19)24
Shota Gogitauri
Income from Tickets Sale in Georgian Football Clubs



Main Tendencies and Challenges of Project Management In local Self-Governments

Zurab Nasaria

PhD student of GTU Email: nasaraiazurab@gmail.com

ABSTRACT

The article examines topical issues of work on projects and their implementation in local government bodies, analyzes the existing practice and the current situation. The study analyzes the legal basis for attracting budget funds for the development of local selfgovernment, the procedure for preparing project applications, interaction with donor organizations and partners, as well as problems and opportunities in this area. The emphasis is on such aspects as the selection of projects for the competition, the role of the project manager in preparing a high-quality project proposal, the possibility of cooperation with NGOs, the presence of a team, the cooperation of municipalities, villages, communities, and communities in the preparation and implementation of joint projects. The analysis of the current situation, dynamics, and main trends in the development of project activities in local government bodies was carried out; the experience of cities and villages is compared. The main attention is paid to the prospects for the development of territorial units, potential areas of project activities. The author notes that one of the main obstacles to the successful work of the project in local governments is the lack of human resources and experienced specialists. The author focuses on the need for constant practical work and support from



external experts who can advise and improve the qualifications of project management specialists.

Keywords: decentralization, project management, local government, donors, projects.

REFERENCES

1. Law of Georgia on grants; parliamentary gazette, available: https://matsne.gov.ge/ka/document/view/31510?publication=29

2. United Nations Development Program (UNDP), Regional and Local Development Promotion in Georgia. Available: https://www. ge.undp.org/content/georgia/ka/home/projects/fostering-regional-and-local-development-in-georgia.html

3. On the approval of the procedures and criteria for the selection of projects for the Integrated Development Program of the pilot regions for 2020 - 2022; available: https://matsne.gov.ge/ka/document/view/4838500?publication=0

4. Web-site of international organization for prject management (Project Management Institute- PMI): www.pmi.org

5. E. Baratashvili, G. Nakaidze; Project Management. Tbilisi. 2007

6. G. Qeshelashvili, N. Pharesashvili. Project Management. Tb. "Universal", 2009.

7. V. Kakabadze. Investements and Project Management. Tb. "Meridiani" 2011.

8. G. Shikhashvili, K.Rusidze. Project Management. Tb. "Meridiani" 2010.

9. Glubochenko. K.O. Features of application of project management technologies in the field of local self-government. Scientific works. Governance. 2013. Issue 202. Volume 214, pp. 84–87.

10. Kozka O. Grants as a source of additional funding [Electronic resource]: Uteka.ua. URL: https://uteka.ua/en/publication/budget-13-byudzhet-byudzhetnyj-process-planirovanieprimenenie-kekr-54-granty-kak-istochnik-dopolnitelnogo-finansirovaniya



11. Chalatsis Thomas, Fitsilis Panos. Adoption of Project Management Practices in Public Organizations. iBusiness. 2014. №6. Pp.131–142 [Електронний ресурс]. Dx.doi.org. URL: http://dx.doi. org/10.4236/ib.2014.63014

12. I.I. Mazur, V.D. Shapiro, N.G. Olderogge, A.W. Colonels. Project management. Moscow, 2010.

13. E. Verzuh. The fast Forvard MBA in Project Management. Wiley Publishing, Inc. 2005.

14. F.Baguley. Project Management. Hodder Headline. London. 2003.

15. S. Robbins, M. Coulter. Management. Pearson. Prentice Hall. 2006.



Creativity – The Basic Way For Overcoming The Economic Crisis Caused By the Covid-19 Pandemic

Vera Dzvelaia¹, Revaz Shengelia²

¹PhD student of GTU, ²Professor of GTU, Scientific Supervisor Email: ¹veradzvelaia@yahoo.com; ²economica_2008@yahoo.com²

ABSTRACT

The pandemic has dramatically changed the reality not only for certain countries but the whole world: frightened by the virus, people got locked at homes, countries, and companies started working online. Nowadays, due to the economic crisis resulted from the corona virus, new opportunities have emerged and the society has imposed new requirements to the creativity, in particular, doctors and scientists are demanded to discover the Covid-19 vaccine, while the economists have to save the country from the economic crisis. Therefore, creative people with different thinking minds, a non-standard approach to the topics, and implementation of the innovations are necessary to find a way out of this hard situation.

As a result of the pandemic, people have limited contacts with each other, while communications between organizations and governments have increased, most of them started working online pushing the companies to move in a new step of the development – digital transformation. The virus has created a range of new opportunities for the countries together with multiple challenges.

Keywords: Covid-19, innovations, digital transformation, technologies, online-platform, creative person, creative approach to the topic.



REFERENCES

1. Shengelia R.–"A Creative person as self-growing value", J. "Economics", N o 5-6, 2016;

2. https://forbes.ge/

3. http://gov.ge/index.php?lang_id=GEO&sec_id=541&info_ id=75886

4. https://www.imf.org/external/index.htm.

5. Guram Jolia, "Education and employment in the digital environment", electronical monography, publishing house "Technical University, 2021

6. https://bdodigital.ge/services/tsipruli-transpormatsia/

7. https://eufordigital.eu/geo/digitising-industry-best-practices-to-promote-the-digital-transformation-of-smes-in-traditionalsectors-of-the-economy/

8. https://savvy.ge/services/digital-strategy-and-transformation/?lang=ge

9. https://forbes.ge/tsiphruli-transphormatsiis-p/

10. https://www.interpressnews.ge/ka/article/605214-ciprulitranspormacia-gia-cerili-premier-ministrs/

11. https://publika.ge/blog/qveynis-cifruli-transformacia-mak-romsjeloba/

12. https://www.geocase.ge/ka/events/66/khatuna-burkadzeyvelastvis-ganatlebis-khelmisatsvdomobisa-da-stsavlebis-efeqtianobisatvis-distanciuri-ganatleba-cvlilebebs-satchiroebs;

13. https://commersant.ge/ge/post/pandemiam-kompaniebiscifruli-transformacia-6-wlit-daachqara-twilio.



Transformation of Modern Society

Georgi Berikashvili

PhD Student of GTU Email: liaberika@yahoo.com

ABSTRACT

The article is devoted to the issues of the influence of modern social changes on the social effectiveness of the law. Social values and institutions are changing dramatically, and this must find expression in the rule of law. According to the author, modern social structure is characterized by an unprecedented increase in the complexity of the social organization, the strengthening of cultural and exchange ties, increasing cultural diversity, the formation of standards typical of the era of mass industrial society, and their corresponding personality, trying to realize their creative potential. At the same time, the author notes that in modern society, people often become a mass tool for resolving social conflicts.

According to the author, in modern conditions, the social structure has also undergone significant transformations, but the existing social reality is very contradictory. On the one hand, economic efficiency is increasing and the most highly-paid and privileged strata are expanding. On the other hand, for the majority of the population, economic stagnation persists and the socio-economic situation is deteriorating.

Keywords: transformation, globalization, social effectiveness of the law.

REFERENCES



1. Fromm E. Escape from freedom. London, 2014

2. Flier A. Sociocultural forecast for the XXI century // Flier A. Culturology for cultural studies. NY, 2018.

3. M.Gilbert A History of the Twentieth Century, London, 1997.



Anti-inflationary Policies and Permanent Fluctuations During the Pandemic

Marina Bagaturia

GTU Assistant Professor Emai: bagaturiam@mail.ru

ABSTRACT

The thesis is very relevant because it discusses the issues related to inflation, its causes and consequences in Georgia, which is one of the main factors affecting the economic development of the country. Also, it is not less important to study the ways of elimination and overcoming it and their use in solving the problem. The purpose of this work is to identify the inflation processes and events, the formation, the usage, the theoretical aspects of evaluation and processing the practical proposals based on the study of the macroeconomic environment. The main task is to identify, analyze and evaluate the situation in the country. Moreover, it is significant to analyze, to evaluate the situation on the money market and to determine the direction of improvement of the desired conditions.

Keywords: Anti-inflationary tactics, Permanent fluctuations, Cash expansion.

REFERENCES

1. https://cutt.ly/OxLL8Ad-Finally checked on 04.12.2020 2.https://www.nbg.gov.ge/index.php?m=639 - Finally checked on 04.12.2020



Extended Reproduction of Scientific-technical Knowledge as a Major Source of Wealth Growth

¹Revaz Shengelia, ²Jujuna Tsiklauri-Shengelia, ³Megi Ananidze ⁴Natia Shengelia

¹PhD, GTU, Professor.
²PhD in Business Administration, Invited Senior Teacher, Batumi State Maritime Academy.
³PhD, GTU Associate Professor, Oxford Brookes University Graduate, Business Faculty.

 $Email: economica_2008@yahoo.com, {}^{1}natia.shengelia@oxfordbrookes.net{}^{4}$

ABSTRACT

The role of scientific-technical knowledge in the development of the economy, in the growth of wealth is clearly seen during the clarification of the issue of reproduction of scientific and technical knowledge, a number of aspects of which are unexplored or need a new review. In the modern conditions, especially in the creative economy, it is advisable to distinguish three forms of reproduction of scientific-technical knowledge, the practical implementation of which is extremely important to improve the investment environment. Especially it is noteworthy the third-extended form of reproduction of scientific-technical knowledge, which is directly related to qualitative changes, development, without which the production, accumulation growth of wealth is unimaginable. and There are some recommendations in this direction, the implementation of which, especially in the pandemic conditions, becomes more important. Keywords: Human capital, business environment, continuous education, investment attractiveness, creative economy, reproduction forms of scientific-technical knowledge.



REFERENCES

1. Frederick H. Harbison. Human Resources as The Wealth of Nations. New York: Oxford University Press, 1973.

2. **ob:** https://www.google.ge/search?q. http://iset-pi.ge/index.php/ka/iset-economist-blog/entry/e1-83-90.07.04.2014. (in Georgian Language).

3. Pearce David (chief editor) Dictionary of modern economic theory translation from English. INFA-M., 1997, S. 608(in Russian).

4. Giorgi Malashkhia. Metaeconomics - Philosophy of Economics. Economics, Tbilisi, 1995, p.74 (in gorgian)];

5. U. Samadashvili, R. Shengelia. Modern Economy. Tb. 2013y, p.11.(in Georgian Language).

6. Journal "Economics", N5-6, 2014y. (in Georgian Language).



BANK TRANSFORMATION PROCESS IN AN UNSTABLE GLOBAL ENVIRONMENT

Gocha Abutidze

Doctoral Student, Faculty of Business Technologies, Georgian Technical University.

Email: g.abutidze@gtu.ge

ABSTRACT

The purpose of the article is to study the process of transformation of banks in an unstable global environment and determine the prospects for the future.

The unstable global environment is a complex dynamic system that requires rapid changes within the bank itself to adapt. Banks are changing, adapting to an unstable global environment and demonstrating the ability not only to withstand adverse factors, but also to seize opportunities to improve efficiency.

The peculiarity of the transformation of commercial banks in an unstable global environment is that they must act faster than competitors, improve efficiency in order to compensate for the negative impact of the unstable global environment, achieve coordination to adapt to the internal and external environment, cooperate with fintech companies, introduce innovative technologies, master new innovative directions.

We think the future of banking is collaboration between traditional banks and neo-banks, especially given the fact that it is becoming increasingly difficult to achieve and maintain profitability in the unstable environment by independently developing and offering a complete range of traditional financial services and products.

Keywords: Bank transformation, Unstable global environment, Innovative technologies, Neobank, Fintech Company.



REFERENCES

1. Abu Hanifa Md. Noman, Chan Sok Gee, Che Ruhana Isa. Does bank regulation matter on the relationship between competition and financial stability? Evidence from Southeast Asian countries // Pacific-Basin Finance Journal. 2018. №48.

2. Haiyan Yin. Bank globalization and financial stability: International evidence // Research in International Business and Finance. 2019. №49.

3. King Brett. Bank 3.0: Why banking is no longer somewhere you go, but something you do. Marshall Cavendish Business, 2013. 402 p.

4. The Economist, "How the digital surge will reshape finance," October 2020.

5. https://www.revolut.com/about-revolut

6.https://www.fitchratings.com/research/banks/fintech-acquisitions-may-affect-competition-among-asean-banks-18-01-2021



CURRENCY SYSTEM AND CURRENCY TRADING OF GEORGIA

Nino Kavtaradze

PhD, Professor of GTU maiaqavtaradze5@gmail.com

ABSTRACT

The present empirical paper investigates the following issues: the formation of the Georgian currency system that started after the collapse of the Soviet Union, when the country has declared its independence, establishing the National Bank of Georgia and issuing the national currency.

Also is discussed financial market where foreign exchange and transaction are made. As it is known today, in the international currency market, 90% of the world market holds the FOREX (Foreign Exchange Market), which makes it the largest foreign exchange market in the world. FOREX currency traders, together with traditional forms, offers the most modern and comfortable form of trade - Online trading. The existing currencies are largely proportional to the ongoing processes of the FOREX market.

Keywords: Currency, Currency Exchange Rate, Currency Market, Interbank Exchange Market, Foreign Exchange, FOREX Market.

REFERENCES

1. National Bank of Georgia, Official website, https://www.nbg. gov.ge/index.php?m=2&lng=eng

2. Forbes in Georgia, Official website, http://forbes.ge/eng

3. FOREX, Official website, https://www.forex.com/en/



Some Practical Financial Reporting (IFRS) Assessment Aspects Of The Covid-19 Impact on Business

Zhuzhuna Tsiklauri-Shengelia¹, Natia Shengelia², Revaz Shengelia³ ¹GTU Professor, ²GTU Associate Professor, ³GTU Professor Email: ¹Ih_Jujuna@yahoo.com, ²natia.shengelia@oxfordbrookes.net ³economica_2008@yahoo.com

ABSTRACT

Generally, the covid-19 pandemic has a great impact on all big, small and medium-sized business all over the world. There are analyzed International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) practical issues that should be considered and addressed by the top management. These financial key issues include discussing the following: IFRS 9-Financial Instruments, IAS 36 Impairment of Assets, IAS 1, IAS 2, ISA 570 (revised) -Going Concern. The Impairment Review of Inventory, Fixed Assets, financial instruments, also the Going Concern at the entity level must be assessed in detail in the pandemic and other difficult circumstances;

Kewords: IFRS, Covid-19 Impact, Impairment, Expected Credit Loss (ECL), NRV, ISA, Going Concern.

REFERENCES

1. Pearson 2020 Prelims Press Release - 7 March AB SJ

2. Ifrs.org

Saras.gov.ge

4. ACCA Strategic Business Reporting (old P2) exam revising materials

5. Accaglobal.com, IFRS 9, Financial Instruments



6. FGPAA continued Education Program 2018, PwC materials;

7. Microsoft Word - Pearson 2020 Prelims Press Release - 7 March AB SJ

8. Results, reports, webcasts & presentations | Pearson

9. % Rates are based on our assumption, not on the company's judgments

10. IAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements (iasplus.com)



DEPRESSED REGIONS OF GEORGIA HAVE GOOD OPPORTUNITIES FOR INCLUSIVE DEVELOPMENT THROUGH TOURISM

Lela Meskhishvili

Doctoral Student of the Faculty of Economics and Business, I. Javakhishvili Tbilisi State University Email: lelameskhishvili@yahoo.com

ABSTRACT

The article - "Depressed regions of Georgia have good opportunities for inclusive development through tourism" - consists of the following parts:

Introduction: Definitions of terms. The need for inclusive growth in the world and in Georgia.

Priorities of inclusive growth in the depressed regions of Georgia. Potential for tourism development in the depressed regions of Georgia.

Summarizing conclusion: The article brings to the forward the issue of priority development of the economically backward (depressed) regions and different parts of Georgia - Racha-Lechkhumi, Samtskhe-Javakheti, Pshav-Khevsureti, Tusheti and others, through the development of tourism. This opinion of the author is based on the resources needed for the development of tourism in these regions, about what the other Georgian scientists - I. Khelashvili, K. Arabuli, d. Gabunia and others - write a lot.

Keywords: Tourism; Inclusive; Inclusive tourism; Inclusive growth; Region; Poverty and inequality.



REFERENCES

1. Chitanava N. The Peculiarities and perspectives of socio-economic and ecological development of the Georgian highlands in the book "Problems of socio-economic development of the Georgian highlands and ways to solve them". Tb., 2010. p. 128.

2. Khelashvili I. Tourism – The way to revive some depressed regions of Georgia. journal "economic". N 7-8. 2016.

3. Social-economic development strategy of Georgia - "Georgia - 2020". Tbilisi, 2013.

4. Klasen, ADB, S. (2010). Measuning and Monitoring Inclusive Growth: Multiple Definitions, Open Qiestions an Some Constructive Proposals. Retrieved from http://www.adb.org./sites/default/files/ publication/28492/adb-wp12-measuring-inclusive-growth.pdf.

5. Gurria, OECD, A. (2013). Retrieved fron www.oecd.org:http:// www.oecd.org/forum/people-first-opening-remarks-forum-2013. htm.

6. Ranieri R. I.-I. (2013). After All, What is Inclusive Growth? Retrieved from. http://www.ipc-unp.org/pub/IPCOnePager188.pdf.

7. Palavinel, UNDP, T. (2011). Consultation on Conceptualizating Inclusive Growth. Retrieved from http://www.undp.prg/content/dam/india/docs/consultation_on_conceptualizing_inclusive_ growth.pdf.

8. IMF. (2013). Statement by the Managing Director on the Work Program of the Executive Board. Retrieved from https://www.imf. org/external/np/pp/eng/2013/052213.pdf.

9. WB. (2015). Sustainable development Goals. Retrieved from https://sustainable-development.un.org/content/documents/15-79SDG5%20Proposal.pdf.



10. 4. Epa Dabla-Norris, Kalpana Kochhar, Nuji Suphap-hiphot, Frantisek Ricka, Euridik; Tsounta, Causes and Consequences of Income Inequality: A Global Penpective, International Monetary Fund, June, 2015. http://www.inf.org/external/pubs/ft/sdn/2015/ sdn1513.pdf.

11. Milanovic B. 2013. "Global Income Inequality by the Numbersi in History and Now. Global Policy 4(2): 198-208.

12. Statistical Yearbook of Georgia. Tb., 2020.

13. Khaduri N. Inclusive growth factors. journal "economist". N1. 2018.

14. Entrepreneurial sector in Georgia. Tb., 2020.

15. Kvaratskhelia M. Problems of revitalization of the mountain region in Georgia in the conditions of globalization. journal "economist". N2. 2009.

16. Basic data and directions of the country for 2021-2024 (revised version). Government of Georgia. 2020.



Post-Pandemic Perspectives of the Global Civil Aviation

Valerian Chedia

Master Degree in Economics, TSU, Manager of the "Aeroflot" in Tbilisi International Airport Email: vaco.chedia@gmail.com

ABSTRACT

The impact of the COVD-19 pandemic on the air transport industry is huge. It is an unimaginably difficult time. The result is a significantly lower demand for air travel for far longer than predicted when the pandemic began. Most people believed the pandemic and economic situation would be improved by 2021, but as it seems, it will not. Some old airline names are likely to vanish. But, which will emerge from the pandemic in the stronger position? Could it be legacy carriers or lowcost carriers? There will be an increase in the number of airlines that require state report. Today, like the 1930s, most borders are effectively closed and despite some pent-up leisure demand, there is widespread reluctance to fly, for health safety reasons. As a result, we will have a very different shaped air industry in the medium term, where legacy airlines will have to adapt to the loss of premium traffic on which they have previously relied. Meanwhile, for many airlines, it will be a matter of how long can they "hold their breath". A majority of airlines are going to be smaller than they are today once the coronavirus pandemic subsides. Most airlines around the world are accelerating fleet retirements, producing a fundamental reset of capacity. In this environment, the global network reach of alliances becomes more important. What will be the platform for the future growth? The air industry will confront an environmental climate even tougher than before, government involvement is inevitably going to increase, we



will have to learn to live with the virus, international cooperation is very important. We will see a fundamental change in air industry. The airline industry itself has got to shrunk. Airline consolidation is inevitable.

Keywords: Air Industry, Corona-Crisis, Global Aviation.

REFERENCES

1. www.iata.org



Tourism Development Perspectives and Challenges in Georgia in the conditions of the Pandemic (Covid-19)

Irakli Kintsurashvili¹, Shura Ukleba²

^{1,2}PhD, Associate Professor of Akaki Tsereteli State University Email: iraklikintsurashvili@yahoo.com¹

ABSTRACT

In the article attention is paid to tourism development in Georgia and introduction of marketing conceptions in conditions of Covid-19.

The aim of research is investigation of difficulties related to marketing using in tourism field, introduction of marketing conceptions in tourist firms and taking marketing arrangements in the conditions of Pandemic.

In the work there is underlined that tourism development and visiting of guests in the country is depended on marketing activity in the conditions of Pandemic nowadays. At the standpoint of its development and regeneration, it's necessary the tourist firms to be involved in tourism industry ,to pay attention to the principles of modern management and marketing. In the work there is mentioned that if the consumers aren't be analyzed according to demographic, geographical, psychological, economic factors and tourists aren't be divided into segments, it's impossible to achieve serious success in the business.

In the work there are elaborated and defined the recommendations and proposals of which consideration will give us the possibility to overcome the crisis, to improve the flow of tourists in the country and to increase the number of the local visitors.

Keywords: tourism, Pandemic, inner tourism, marketing research, healthcare, national economy.



1. I. Kintsurashvili "Marketing" Kutaisi edition "Khandzta" 2012

2. I. Kintsurashvili "Marketing" international Marketing principals. KSU edition 2007

3. I. Kintsurashvili "Marketing" "Theory and Practice" KSU edition 1997

4. F. Kotleri, Gari Amstrongi "Marketing Basics" Tbilisi 2013, 14th edition

5. T. Zurabishvili Natural Methods Social Research, Social ScienceCentre,2006

6. F. Kotleri; Armstrongi "Marketing" 2008

7. G. Shubladze "Marketing Basics", Tbilisi edition "Universal, 2009

8. N. Todua" Marketing" Tbilisi 2009.

9. A. Sokhadze "Marketing", Kutaisi 2011.



Income from Tickets Sale in Georgian Football Clubs

Shota Gogitauri

Invited Senior Lecturer, Georgian State Teaching University of Physical Education and Sport. Email: gogitaurishota@gmail.com

ABSTRACT

Georgia has a big history in football, many famous Georgian players played for the national team. Football is one of the most popular sport in Georgia. Ticket sales income is one of the main source of football teams. Ticket selling and merchandising is one the most important thing for big clubs, their legal and financial resources are directed towards from the tickets income. We have a serious problem in Georgia, Georgian clubs did not have ticket selling and they don't have income from tickets. The clubs are not selling tickets and they don't have income from ticket selling, they don't have seasonal tickets, which one has one of the most important role in modern clubs.

Sport has an important role in establishing the healthy lifestyle. The development of Sport has an important role as in developing as well in high-developed countries. Sport clearly expresses the cultural, social and economical situation on a global scale.

For businessmen who are buying clubs, the big part of the motivation is gaining power and respect. Usually, they are fans of the club that they are buying. Most of them want to be famous not only in their own field.

Additionally, the most important goal of football clubs is to maximize their revenue. However they are acting according to the money they have, they must do financial balance. Teams are thinking to get the important role in international market tickets and seasonal tickets.



Football is currently the most popular sport in the world. In the season 1999/2000, the professional English football league (Premier league) became the first league in the world to pass one billion Euros income marks. (Vopel, 2011) The average club/wages-turnover ratio has increased continuously over the last decade: the total wages and salaries figures in 1999/2000 season were 747 Million Pound Sterlings. Football is a massive sport. People are playing football in every country. Businessmen's are trying to invest money in football. This sport is one of the biggest sport in the world.

In modern life, sport is a big business. To get the success, many things to do are necessary. It is difficult to examine sport as a singular entity. In fact, the multifaceted-sport industry includes such diverse segments as the sport-related media, legal and financial services, sponsorships, advertising, endorsements, ticketing, events, facility operations, wholesale and retail sporting goods, education, nonprofit work, community development, entertainment, gaming, recreation, sport tourism. Sports participants, spectators and business managers hold unique interests in the sports industry. Stakeholders also include educators, tourists, gamblers and gamers. (Baker & Esherick, 2013).

Ticketing is important for two reasons. One is income and second is the support of your team. The Team is selling tickets before the seasons start, when they are selling tickets like this, it is cheaper. Ticket selling is not a problem for big clubs. The ticket has different prices. It varies by categories. If the supporter buys the seasonal ticket, he has a discount. They have also special seats in the stadium. They can't change their seats. Members are part of the team, they have a special discount, they can use the discount card during merchandising. They have a special price. Ticketing to sporting events are highly differentiated – by seat location, date and time of the game, home team and opponent team qualifies make each ticket unique (K. Sanford & F. Scott, 2014).



Moreover, the ticket price is also different in the championship, in a cup game and in Europe tournaments, economic situation. The Club is deciding himself how much will be the price, it can be changed. It depends on the concrete situation. The Ticket price is different during the important game, the host team knows that it will have a huge interest of supporters.

Conclusion: Finance has an important role in the modern Sport. It is impossible to get success without financial investment. The Businessmen avoid to invest money in sport and especially in football, they can't get benefit in football. We don't have in Georgia: broadcasting, sponsorship, ticket selling, and merchandising. The main finance source of football teams in Georgia are the players' transfers and the owner investments, but it is too small amount and mostly owners are the charity persons.

Most of the Georgian teams would have gone bankrupt without the involvement of the government, the state support in terms of infrastructure and academies is obligatory, essential. Football in the entertainment and team presidents need to think how to create the entertainment. The main problem of Georgian clubs are management. It is obligatory to create a commission who will check finances. This is an important thing in the government organizations. Additionally, there should be the private sector interest and government support.

Keywords: Income from ticket selling; Financing systems; Management; Salary; Merchandising.



Editorial Board Members, Professors, PhD:

Agnieszka Rzepka-PhD, LUT (Poland) Aleksandre Qutateladze-PhD, GTU Aleksandre Sichinava-PhD, GTU Aleksandre Skhirtladze-PhD Anzor Abralava-PhD. GTU Andrei Glushecki-PhD (Russia) Avtandil Silagadze-PhD, TSU, academician Dimitri Qavtaradze-PhD,(Russia) Elguja Meqvabishvili-PhD, TSU Evgeni Baratashvili-PhD, GTU Gia Ghavtadze-PhD Giorgi Malashkhia-PhD, GTU Giorgi Shubladze-PhD Guram Jolia-PhD, GTU Ioseb Archvadze-PhD Karlo Gurtskaia-PhD, GTU Lela Bakhtaze-PhD, TSU Merab Kakulia-PhD Mikheil Jibuti-PhD, TSU Mikheil Roketlishvili-PhD. USA Natia Shengelia-PhD, GTU Niko Chikhladze-PhD, ATSU Nikoloz Bakashvili-PhD. TSU Nino Abesadze-PhD, TSU Nodar Tchitanava-PhD, academician Oksana Soldatenko-PhD (Ukraine) Paata Koguashvili-PhD, GTU, academician; Oetevan Marshava-PhD, TSU Revaz Gogokhia-PhD,TSU Rusudan Qutateladze-PhD, GTU Solomon Pavliashvili-PhD.GTU Teimuraz Babunashvili-PhD, TSU Teimuraz Shengelia-PhD, TSU Ushangi Samadashvili-PhD, TSU Vakhtang Datashvili-PhD, GTU Vladimer Papava-PhD, academician ZhuZhuna Tsiklauri-PhD, GTU Zurab Lipartia-PhD, GTU



AIMS AND SCOPE

ICRET MTÜ The Baltic Scientific Journals publishes peer-reviewed, original research and review articles in an open access format. Accepted articles span the full extent of the social and behavioral sciences and the humanities.

ICRET MTÜ The Baltic Scientific Journals seeks to be the world's premier open access outlet for academic research. As such, unlike traditional journals, ICRET MTÜ The Baltic Scientific Journals does not limit content due to page budgets or thematic significance. Rather, ICRET MTÜ The Baltic Scientific Journals evaluates the scientific and research methods of each article for validity and accepts articles solely on the basis of the research. Likewise, by not restricting papers to a narrow discipline, ICRET MTÜ The Baltic Scientific Journals facilitates the discovery of the connections between papers, whether within or between disciplines.

ICRET MTÜ The Baltic Scientific Journals offers authors quick review and decision times; a continuous-publication format; and global distribution for their research via ICRET MTÜ The Baltic Scientific Journals Online. All articles are professionally copyedited and typeset to ensure quality.

Those who should submit to ICRET MTÜ The Baltic Scientific Journals include:

Authors who want their articles to receive quality reviews and efficient production, ensuring the quickest publication time.

Authors who want their articles to receive free, broad, and global distribution on a powerful, highly discoverable publishing platform.

Authors who want their articles branded and marketed by a world-leading social science publisher.

Authors who want or need their articles to be open access because of university or government mandates.



TOPICS OF JOURNAL



NGO International Center for Research, Education & Training (Estonia, Tallinn) is publishing scientific papers of scientists on Website and in Referred Journals with subjects which are mentioned below:

© The Baltic Scientific Journals

ISSN: 2613-5817; E-ISSN: 2613-5825; UDC: 0 (0.034); DOI PREFIX: 10.36962/PIRETC Proceeding of The International Research Education & Training Center.

ISSN: 2674-4562, E-ISSN: 2674-4597, UDC: 620.9 (051) (0.034); DOI PREFIX: 10.36962/ENECO Proceedings of Energy Economic Research Center. ENECO

ISSN: 1609-1620, E-ISSN: 2674-5224; UDC: 62 (051) (0.034); DOI PREFIX: 10.36962/PAHTEI Proceedings of Azerbaijan High Technical Educational Institutions. PAHTEI

ISSN: 2663-8770, E-ISSN: 2733-2055; UDC: DOI PREFIX: 10.36962/ETM ETM Equipment, Technologies, Materials

ISSN: 2733-2713; E-ISSN: 2733-2721; UDC: DOI PREFIX: 10.36962/SWD SOCIO WORLD-SOCIAL RESEARCH & BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES



Society of Azerbaijanis living in Georgia. NGO. (Georgia, Tbilisi) is publishing scientific papers of scientists on Website and in Referred Journals with subjects which are mentioned below:

© Southern Caucasus Scientific Journals

ISSN: 1987-6521, E-ISSN: 2346-7541; UDC: 551.46(0510.4) DOI PREFIX: 10.36962/GBSSJAR, IF-1.05 Gulustan-Black Sea Scientific Journal of Academic Research

ISSN: 2346-8068; E-ISSN: 2346-8181; DOI PREFIX: 10.36962/ALISJMSC Ambiance in Life-International Scientific Journal in Medicine of Southern Caucasus.

Representation of the International Diaspora Center of Azerbaijan in Georgia. NGO (Georgia Tbilisi) is publishing scientific papers of scientists on Website and in Referred Journals with subjects which are mentioned below:

© Southern Caucasus Scientific Journals

ISSN: 2298-0946, E-ISSN: 1987-6114; UDC: 3/k-144 DOI PREFIX: 10.36962/CESAJSC The Caucasus-Economic and Social Analysis Journal of Southern Caucasus



[Review Article Template]

[This Review Article Template has the standard set of headings that make up different sections of the manuscript.]

[Below the headings the dummy text is given in red color.]

[Delete the dummy text in red color and replace it with your own text.]

[You can directly type your text here or copy your text from your file and paste it at the appropriate place.]

[Delete any section or heading you do not need.]

[If you need more than one set of headings, you can copy and past the headings.]

[Keep the right margin of the text ragged. Do not use "Justify text" command.]

[Please make sure that the reference format conforms to the journal reference style.]

[DO NOT FORGET TO FREQUENTLY SAVE THIS FILE WHILE WORKING ON THIS MANUSCRIPT TO PREVENT LOSS OF DATA.]

[DOUBLE SPACE THE MANUSCRIPT THROUGHOUT (Title Page need not be double spaced)]

[DELETE ALL TEXT IN RED COLOR BEFORE SUBMITTING YOUR MANUSCRIPT.]

TITLE: PAPER TITLE (Title, Times New Roman, bold, 12)

[Enter here the title of manuscript in sentence case (12 Bold)-capital letter.]

AUTHORS: [List here all author names; identify authors with author affiliations with superscript Arabic numerals]

[First Name Middle Name Family Name¹], [First Name Middle Name Family Name²]
[First Name Middle Name Family Name³], [First Name Middle Name Family Name⁴]
(Author(s), Times New Roman, bold, 10)

AFFILIATIONS: [List here all author affiliations including position in the department, department, institute, city, state, country, email; identify authors with author affiliations with superscript Arabic numerals]



¹ [Author affiliations – position, department, institute, city, state, country, email ID, ORCID ID]

² [Author affiliations – position, department, institute, city, state, country, email ID, ORCID ID]

³ [Author affiliations – position, department, institute, city, state, country, email ID, ORCID ID]

(Affiliation1,2,3 Times New Roman, 10)

CORRESPONDING AUTHOR DETAILS

[Give here name, contact address, contact phone number, email and fax number of the corresponding author, Corresponding author must be one of the authors of the manuscript.]

[First Name Middle Name Family Name]
[Complete Mailing Address]
[City]
[State]
[Country]
[Postal Code]
[Contact Phone Number - Country prefix followed by full phone number]
[Contact Email]
[Fax number - Country prefix followed by full fax number]
(Affiliation for CA Times New Roman, 10)
Short Running Title: [Give here a short title of the paper, less than 40

characters] (Times New Roman, 10)

Guarantor of Submission: The corresponding author is the guarantor of submission.

[If an author other than the corresponding author is the Guarantor of Submission, delete the previous line, write the name of the individual and give the details below.]

(Times New Roman, 10)

Guarantor of Submission (if not the corresponding author)

[Give here name, contact address, contact phone number, email and fax number of the guarantor of Submission, if other than the corresponding author] [First Name Middle Name Family Name] [Complete Mailing Address] [City] [State] [Country]



[Postal Code] [Contact Phone Number - Country prefix followed by full phone number] [Contact Email] [Fax number - Country prefix followed by full fax number] (Times New Roman, 10)

SUMMARY (OPTIONAL) (Times New Roman, 10 Bold)

[This section of the manuscript is optional. It is up to the author(s) to decide whether to include this section in the manuscript.]

["Summary" of your work is a short description of the work being presented in your article. It is longer than the "Abstract" which is limited to 250 words for all types of articles. After reading the "Summary" a reader should be able to understand the background information, why the work is being reported, what the significant results are, and what may be the explanation for the results.]

[Although writing an additional section in the form of "Summary" of your work may seem like and extra burden on your time and resources, it will be an important part of your manuscript especially for articles which are highly technical. Many times readers who are students, or who are not expert on the subject of the article or readers who are experts but in related subjects may skip reading an article if on first look the article appears to be very technical with lot of data, facts and statistics. Some other articles may not be easy to understand, on first reading, even by experts in the subject of the article. The "Summary" section will help the readers in understanding the results of your study.]

- The recommended word limit for "Summary" for Review Article is 800 words (2 pages)
- When writing the "Summary" use as simple and as non-technical language as possible. Write the "Summary" as if you are explaining your study to a first year graduate student.
- Do not repeat or copy text verbatim from the main text of your manuscript. "Summary" will probably be the most important and most widely read part of your manuscript. Write it fresh as a separate section.
- In the "Summary" give: 1) relevant background information, 2) why the work was done, 3) what were the significant results, 4) possible explanation of the results.
- Only give the significant results of your study and give their possible explanation.
- Do not compare your results with other studies.



• Do not give references in the "Summary" section. First reference should start in main text of your manuscript from the "Introduction" section.

TITLE: [Enter Here the Title of Manuscript in Sentence Case.] ABSTRACT (Times New Roman, 10) OBJECTIVE: (Times New Roman, 10) METHODS: (Times New Roman, 10) RESULTS: (Times New Roman, 10) CONCLUSION: (Times New Roman, 10) [Structured or unstructured abstract as required by the manuscript] [Less than 250 words for all manuscripts] Keywords: [Four to six keywords for indexing purpose] (Times New Roman, 10)

TITLE: [Enter here the title of manuscript in sentence case.] (Times New Roman, 12)

[Type or copy/paste the manuscript text under the headings below. References are in square brackets, e.g. [1, 2, 3] and figures/tables are in parenthesis, e.g. (Figure 1) or (Table 1)]

INTRODUCTION (Times New Roman, 10 Bold)

[Type or copy/paste your text here]

(Times New Roman, 12)

[After "INTRODUCTION" rest of the headings or subheadings can be as required by the manuscript]

CONCLUSION (Times New Roman, 10 Bold)



[Type or copy/paste your text here] (Times New Roman, 10)

CONFLICT OF INTEREST (Times New Roman, 10 Bold)

[Declare here if any financial interest or any conflict of interest exists.] (Times New Roman, 10)

AUTHOR'S CONTRIBUTIONS (Times New Roman, 10 Bold)

[Enter name of authors followed by author's contribution.] [At least one task from each group is required from an individual to be listed as author of the article, delete anything which is not applicable.] (Times New Roman, 10)

[First Name Middle Name Family Name]

Group1 - Conception and design, Acquisition of data, Analysis and interpretation of data

Group 2 - Drafting the article, Critical revision of the article

Group 3 - Final approval of the version to be published

(Times New Roman, 10)

[First Name Middle Name Family Name]

Group1 - Conception and design, Acquisition of data, Analysis and interpretation of data

Group 2 - Drafting the article, Critical revision of the article

Group 3 - Final approval of the version to be published

(Times New Roman, 10)

[First Name Middle Name Family Name]

Group1 - Conception and design, Acquisition of data, Analysis and interpretation of data

Group 2 - Drafting the article, Critical revision of the article

Group 3 - Final approval of the version to be published

(Times New Roman, 10)

[First Name Middle Name Family Name]

Group1 - Conception and design, Acquisition of data, Analysis and interpretation of data

Group 2 - Drafting the article, Critical revision of the article

Group 3 - Final approval of the version to be published

(Times New Roman, 10)



[First Name Middle Name Family Name]

Group1 - Conception and design, Acquisition of data, Analysis and interpretation of data

Group 2 - Drafting the article, Critical revision of the article

Group 3 - Final approval of the version to be published

(Times New Roman, 10)

[First Name Middle Name Family Name]

Group1 - Conception and design, Acquisition of data, Analysis and interpretation of data

Group 2 - Drafting the article, Critical revision of the article

Group 3 - Final approval of the version to be published

(Times New Roman, 10)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS (Times New Roman, 10 Bold)

[List here any individuals who contributed in the work but do not qualify for authorship base on the above criteria.]

REFERENCES (Times New Roman, 10 Bold)

[List here all the references in the order of citation in the text. List all authors if less than six. If more than six authors, list the first six followed by "et.al."] [General style of reference is:]

[Surname First Name Middle Name, Surname First Name Middle Name. Title of article. Journal Name Year;Volume(Number):Full inclusive page numbers.]

[NO SPACES BETWEEN - Year;Volume(Number):Full inclusive page numbers.]

- 1. [Surname First Name Middle Name, Surname First Name Middle Name. Title of article. Journal Name Year;Volume(Number):Full inclusive page numbers.]
- 2. [Surname First Name Middle Name, Surname First Name Middle Name. Title of article. Journal Name Year;Volume(Number):Full inclusive page numbers.]
- 3. [Reference 3]
- 4. [Reference 3]
- 5. [Reference 3]
- 6. [Reference 3]

(Times New Roman, 10 Bold)



SUGGESTED READING (Times New Roman, 10 Bold)

[In this section include references to articles, abstracts, books, manuals, web pages, videos, presentations or any other material you have referred to in planning and writing your study which are either not directly relevant to your study or not important enough to be cited in the text and given in the "References" section.]

[Include any number of items in this section, but we suggest you to limit the number to 15 or less for review articles and original articles and 10 or less for case series and case reports.]

[Please DO NOT cite the items in the "Suggested Reading" section in the text of your manuscript.]

TABLES (Times New Roman, 10 Bold)

[All tables should be double spaced. Each table on a separate page]

 Table 1: [Type or copy/paste here a brief descriptive title of the table DO NOT use full-stop after table sentence] (Times New Roman, 10)

Abbreviations: [Give here full form of all abbreviations used in the table. Give the full form even if it has been explained in the text.] [All tables should be double spaced. Each table on a separate page]

 Table 2: [Type or copy/paste here a brief descriptive title of the table DO NOT use full-stop after table heading] (Times New Roman, 10)



Abbreviations: [Give here full form of all abbreviations used in the table. Give the full form even if it has been explained in the text.]

FIGURE LEGENDS (Times New Roman, 10 Bold)

Figure 1: [Give here a description of figures/image, include information like contrast media, stain, chemical, power used, protect patient privacy at all times. End the legend with full stop.]

(Times New Roman, 10)

Figure 2: (A) – [If a figure has many parts give here a description of part of figures/image, include information like contrast media, stain, chemical, power used, protect patient privacy at all times;] (B) – [Give here a description of part of figures/image, include information like contrast media, stain, chemical, power used, protect patient privacy at all times. End legend with full stop.] (Times New Roman, 10)



NOTES

l	

ECONOMICS - SCIENCE, PRACTICE & EXPERIENCE

E-ISSN: XXXX-XXXX; DOI: 10.36962/ECS

VOLUME 01, ISSUE 01, 2021

ECONOMICS

MULTIDISCIPLINARY JOURNAL REFEREED SCIENTIFIC JOURNAL

SCIENCE, PRACTICE, EXPERIENCE

